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ZOAR CHAPEL,
ARGYLE STREET,

Was

“Old

first edifice erected 
Methodists.

Zoar ” furnished home 
worshippers for years.

by

for

(BY REV. G. J. BOND.)
A century ago, there was but one 

Methodist church in Halifax. It stood 
on the west side of Argyle Street, 
immediately facing the head of Bell’s 
Lane, where its sturdy frame, for six­
ty years transformed into business 
premises, may still be seen. It was a 
plain wooden structure, and its un­
adorned gable closely abutted on the 
street. But it held nine hundred peo­
ple, and large congregations gathered 
within its walls. And it had a hist­
ory worth relating, for it illustrates 
the heroic days of Methodism in this 
city and in this province.

“The business of one half the town 
is to sell rum, the other half to 
drink it. You may from this simple 
circumstance judge of our morals, 
and infer that we are not enthusiasts 
in religion.’’ So wrote some Haligon­
ian.in 1760 to a correspondent in Bos­

tonConditions had probably not 
greatly improved when, in the course 

of one of his apostolic tours, William 
Black -preached the first Methodist 
sermon here on the evening of pJune 
11th, 1782. He had scant welcome at, 
first, but in two or three days his 
congregation filled to overflowing 
three rooms of a private house, and 
in a few months the nucleus of a 
church welcomed the tireless evange­
list on his visits to the gay and bib-» 
ulous little capital.

" Three years later, when Dree- 
born Garretson came from the 
United States to assist Black, 
he preached his first sermon in 
a building holding an audience of 
three hundred, which Philip Marchin- 
ton had rented for Methodist ser­
vices, and had fitted up with seats 
and pulpit. Marchinton was then the 
leading Methodist business man of 
Halifax, and was the grandfather of 
the Crimean hero, Major Welsford. 
Next year, Marchinton built, at his 
own expense, a church for the Metho­
dists seating a thousand worshippers. 
But he kept it as his own property, 
and a few years later, when disciplin- 

' ed for some irregularity of conduct, 
he became offended, and forbade them 
further use of it. It stood on Argyle 
Street at the head of Bell’s Lane, as 
it is now called, but then and for 
years thereafter, Marchinton’s Lane. 
After some further ecclesiastical vi­
cissitudes, it was transformed into 
private dwellings. >

The labor these heroic pioneers im- 
derwent needed the strength of giants 
to accomplish it. What would modern 
Methodist preachers in Halifax think 
of one of Garretson’s Sundays?—“He 
preached at eight in the morning at 
the ‘preaching house’; at ten at the 
poor-house; at noon at the preaching 
house; at four at a private house 
near the Dockyard; and again at 
'candle light’, in the preaching 

house.”
It is evident from Black’s descrip­

tion of religious life in Halifax, writ­
ten about 1786, that the people of the 
town were given to variety in their 
church affiliations. “There are”, he 
says, “one large English church; one 
small Dutch church; one Presbyterian 
meeting house; one Roman Catholic 
chapel; besides a small society of 
Quakers; one of Sandémanians; and 
one of the followers of Swedenborg; 
together with a few of Lady Hunt­
ingdon society, and a great swarm of 
infidels.” In these surroundings, 
Methodism first built a local habita­
tion of its own in 1792, when its ad-
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berenta, turned out oitthe privately 
owned "meeting house.” determined 
to erect one for themselves, and set- 
tied on a site on Argyle street, close 
to the building they had been wont 
to occupy. Its dimensions as pre­
scribed by contract, were "fifty feet 
in length, thirty-six in breadth, and 
twenty-two feet post.” Methodis* sol­
diers from the garrison, dug the foun- 
dations, and, by agreement with the 
builder, those who had money or 
material gave it; those who had nei­
ther gave labor; and some spent 
their evenings in assisting in the erec­
tion. The original trustees were Al- 
eiand’J Anderson, Joseph Anderson, 
John Wisdom, Peter Smith and Sam­
uel Selden, three of them being con­
nected with H. ;M. Dockyard. of 
these, Alexander Anderson left a 
name long honored among his fellow 
citizens, and his descendants are 
among us to this day.

It was dedicated and opened 
for worship on the morning 
of Sunday, November 25th, 
1792, the sermon, it is said. Being on 
the text, Gen. 19.23, “The sun was 
risen on the earth when Lot entered 
into Zoar." Afterward it bore the 
name of Zoar Chapel; and "Old 
Zoar" continued for many a long 
year to occupy e unique place in tha 
reverential affection of the Met ho- 

Halifax. Few survivors there
shin VfM86 Jh° were wont to wor- 
stm ** walls' but Its name is

yVniUar as a household word to 
the older generatione among m

sundial"”?4111* breo
standing twenty year, and more when

firat m.tu RKCORDBR issued its
nun a £Xi ** C°ntinue<$ to fur- 
uisn » home to successive genera-
tione of worshippers till the erection
ÎLT*ToT ,Gïïrton Street Church to 
1351b For eighteen years previous#.
ÏTZr U 6ad accommodated sgttr
a portion of the Methodists of toe I
TiJ' BtL(innJ;83Vhe Preeent *l"un3-
T"*,5‘r*ct Church had been Vrilt to 
provide what were then the- iwH-h <*•!>, suburbs with a place ôf wâJïï? . 
their Methodist population As « °r

and forming no inconsiderable part of 
its general population. Noble laymfen 
like Francis Johnson and Archibald 
Morton and Joseph Bell and Samuel 
L. ShannoftNyand James B. Morrow 
shared with the ministers in the spir­
itual development of the church. The 
Andersons, the Billings, the Blacks, 
the Harringtons, the Smiths the 
Starrs, the Harts, and others eoually 
prominent in the business life ofjthe 
city in its earlier years, gave sub­
stantial aid in its material progress. 
And as the Methodists ‘grew in num­
bers, too great and too widely scat­
tered through the growing city, to- 
be all accommodated in one or two . - 
centres, the Methodist churches in- |

above list, settled on the southeast 
corner of Prince and Granville 
Streets. He became a member of His 
Majesty’s Council, but fell out with 
the Governor because of his advoca­
tion of a representative Assembly, 
even at that darly date.

Dr. John Steele lived somewhere in 
the south suburbs for a time, but re­
moved to Annapolis in 1759, which 
county he afterwards represented in 
the Assembly. He died in 1764. _

Dr. Alexander Abercrombie soon re­
moved to Windsor, dying in 1775. An 
elaborate and laudatory epitaph was 
written for him by Chief Justice Bel­
cher, wherein he was spoken of as 
skilled as a second Solomon.”

Dr. John F. G. Gschwind, a Ger- Nova Scotia to survey the lands in 
I man, was Town Health Officer and the western part of the Province and
assistant Garrison surgeon for many 
years. He died in 1829. His residence 
was on the north-east corner of Duke 
and Grafton Streets.

A number of physicians came to 
Halifax with the British regiments 
after the close of the American War, 
most of them going to other parts of

allot them to settlers. He was also 
appointed to the office of magistrate. 
He visited Horton in 1763, baptized 
converts, and organized a church com­

posed of Baptists and Pedobaptists. 
One of his descendants became the 
wife of the late Senator McMaster of 
Toronto. She gave the McMaster res-

creased from the one of a century ®r- Johnathan Prescott lived in the 
ago to the six of to-day. Brunswick 'j south suburbs. He practiced medicine 
Street Church, as has been mention- *,an<* entered into mercantile life also, 
ed, waa opened in 1834, and the first ; accumulating considerable wealth. He 
Grafton Street Chnrch, the successor ji was active in the founding of Chester 
of “Old Zoar'*, in 1852. To these haver f. a.nd died there in 1806. For some 
been added in succession, the Charles [■ time Prevlous he was Justice of the 
Street, Kaye Street, Robie Street,, ”Peace and Judge of the Inferior 
aad Oxford Street churches. The ag- ? ^ourt °f Common Pleas for the Coun- 
gregate seating capacity of these is j ty o£. Lunenburg. One son, Joseph, 
three thousand, six hundred people,. Practi8ed in Windsor. Another, the 
and the total membership on their1 Hon* Charles R. Prescott, amassed 
rolls, one thousand, five hundred and \much wealth as a merchant in Hali- 
ninety-four. *ax, and removed to Cornwallis in

Meanwhile the scattered and strug- | 1S12' 
gling Methodist churches of the Brit- if A Dr- Leonard Lockman, a German, 
iah North America of 1813 have "practised medicine in the north sub­
grown in the century until to-day at* urbs’ dying there ln his 73rd- year, 
united Methodism covers thé Domin- * Lockma" Street was named after 
ion from Atlantic to Pacific, the lar­
gest Protestant Church in Canada,
with 3,675 churches, valued at over 
$20,006,000; with 3,655 ministers and- 
over 340,000 members; and with ad­
herents numbering considerably over- 
a million.

Lockman 
him.

r Dr. Thomas Wood was surgeon 
! SHjrley’s Dagiment, at the siege of 

1 Louisburg. He afterwards entered the 
i ministry and came to Halifax in 1752 
and was appointed curate of St.

1 Paul’s. In 1763 he removed to An- 
. napolis, dying there in 1778.

I Dr. Michael Head, Sr., came to 
Halifax in 1792, and was for many 
years Surgeon of the City Militia. He 

at tx Tj AT ip a V ' „ resIded on Barrington Street, oppo- 
v/LJL/ HALIDA A. I site St. Paul’s church, dying in 1805.

Dr. Michael Head, son of the for­
mer, was the first native Nova .Sco- 
t ian wflo practiced in Halifax. He 
vr&8 a physician of great eminence, 
smd a man of excellent all-around 

aibility.
Dr. John Jeffries, a Loyalist, came 

i fa-' Halifax in 1776, and for some 
j years was Chief of the Surgical Staff 
I Nova Scotia. He finally returned 
jto Boston, where he died in 1819.
Ji Dr. Sylvester Gardiner, also a Loy­
alist, came here in 1776, but return-"
• to the United States nine years 
later. Among other Loyalist physic- 

may be mentioned Dr. John 
} Prince, Dr. William Le Perkins, Dr.
| Nathaniel Perkins, Dr. Peter Oliver, 
;-Dr. Sylvester Oliver and Dr. William 
j, tie. The last named was a man 
j, of eminent talents and many of 
them. He was at once an eloquent

the Province. The following were the .idence in Toronto for a ladies’ col-
off\ctals of the Naval Hospital for 
1813:

W. I. Eppes, Agent.
John Clifford, Surgeon.
Mr. Robert Hume, Dispenser. 
Samuel Head, Assistant Surgeon. 

Medical practice in the" early part 
of the last century was crude indeed. 
Bleeding, blistering,, purging, were 
the great standbys, heroic doses of 
Calomel being the order of the day. 
Surgery was practically limited to 
lancing abscesses, performing ampu- ‘ 
tations and “cutting for the stone.” 
Anaesthetics were not known until 
long afterwards, and patients were 

mply held down or strapped to an 
operating table while the knife and 
the saw were being used, their 
screams often being heard .yutside the 
hospital. Supperating wounds were 
the commonplaces of treatment and 
“laudable pus” was much talked 
about. Halifax being a naval and a 
military stâtioii in the midst of 
alarms, there was no lack of clinical 

! material, and so the profession of 
OI j that time represented the best prac- 

I tical skill of the age. The discovery J

lege, now known *s Monlton Ladies 
College.

In 1763 Rev. John and Rev. James 
Sutton came from New England and 
visited Newport, Hants i Co. They bap­
tized a few converts of whom one 
was Daniel Dimock. About fifteen 
years after Mr. Moulton formed his 
church in Horton it became extinct.

From 1753 to 1778 not much pro­
gress was made by the few Baptists 
scattered over the Maritime Provin­
ces. In the meantime Henry Alline 
of Falmouth, N. S., a man consumed 
with zeal for evangelizing, a Consre- 
gationalist of the Newlight type, ap­
peared on the field. The immigrants 
from the New England Colonies who 
came to Nova Scotia to settle on 
the lands vacated by the Acadian 
French, were mostly Congregational- 
ists. They formed churches at Yar­
mouth, Liverpool, Chester, Cornwal­
lis and Annapolis, also one at Wat- 
erbury on the St. John River. These 
were supplied by pastors who were 
mostly graduates of Harvard Col­
lege. On entering upon his work as 

evangelist, Henry Alline assailed
of the causation of septic conditions, ; these churches as inactive and world-

PHYSICIANS OF

28 medical men came over will 
Cornwallis expedition.

Crude medical practice in the early j 
part of the last century.

For the following most interesting 
fatvts concerning the medical profes­
sion of Old Halifax, we are indebted 
to Dr. D. A. Campbell of this city, 
one of the foremost members of the' 
profession in Canada. Dr. Campbell 
issued a small pamphlet in 1905, en- •• lanB 
titled “Pioneers of Medicine in Nova 
Scotia,” and from it we cull the fol­
lowing facts:

There was a surprisingly large num­
ber of medical men came over with 
Governor Cornwallis’ expedition when.

C™ the rnb'rablp ToZ
Okapel numbered one, hundred ^ 
twenty names, and by lfioi the»»to one hAT-ra- 
Probably, a century, ago there Wre 

l^Nro tuudrto and, fifty names

the city was founded. They numbered 
twenty-eight in all, and their names 
were as follows:

Alexander Hay, wife and two child­
ren, surgeon’s mate; Georgius Phil- 
lipue Bruscowitz and wife, surgeon; 
M. Rush, doctor find surgeon; Robert
Grant, surgeon’s mate; Henry Men­
ton and wife, surgeon’s mate; John 
Willis, wife and one child, chymist 
and surgeon; Fenton Griffith and wife,,

j Preacher, a celebrated physician and 
i an able lawyer. He algo exhibited su- 
| perior military aptitude and was a 
;i Major General of Militia. He was 
graduate of Harvard and lived in 

h Cambridge until 1776 when he re­
moved to Halifax, dying here but

j the discovery of antiseptic and 
aesthetics have created a new world 
in regard to the saving of life and 
the amelioration of suffering, and the 
“Acadian Recorder” has chronicled 
every step in this marvellous trans­
formation from the use of the bar­
ber’s razor as a professional instru­
ment for blood-letting to the utiliz­
ation of .radium as a curative agency.

pie and Knowlan, end* manv 
of the «faute Of too» Z,? ° ^ 
toe rapt audience» that gather^ ^ 
fo" t.he quaint pulpit of the 
»“ ice dMiBr «• *rty of

As the yearn went on. toe 
Methodists of the capital increased 
from the few converts of the pioneer 
preacher, till they were found occupy­
ing some of the most influential plac­
es in the,city's business and otfture,

Wildm&n and wife, surgeon; John In­
man, surgeon; John Wallace and wife, , 
surgeon’s mate-; Daniel Brown, surg- ;

on its rol* of duly ya^?deiLrm0nSf 8Urgeon'8 mata; Thomas Wilson, sur 
• accredited1 mem- geon: Thom»» ------

void ZosrfS as the ow centre of 
?f!tbodjat actir*ty in the, capital of 
the proTince for 'fortjeAwo years, and! 
as one of the two centres, for sigh- 
teen years longer, held a most 
portant place i» the progress and de^ 
velopment <* the chureh. Many annu-

01 a dlstrict that then 
nomprehended toe three mari
mTS”. were be)d in it. the
Sg^KrÆSdn.,,

l.atedBLT,ertL°' ZtbUM?ttJZ

eoldiarl»8 in ble at,mlnistrat<*,
Wiii Wtnlam^cX^ «
throughout thre.^ belOTed 
Matthew Hehey “ »r.
qutoes as he was profouLi iu thout^ 
perhaps the greatest OTtoit Z?1 
that Canada has had ^ iua
Strong and Avard and pops and tT* 
pie and Knowlan.

Tew months afterwards.
^liam J- Almon came here in 

nLWith Lord Howe'S forces from 
Boston. He afterwards went back; to

__ _______ ,j£le United States and served against
g©on; Thomas Lonthian, surgeon’s . v16 c°loniste. Later he came back 
mate; Charles Paine, surgeon; Wil- iTto Halifax and received the appokit- 
Bam LasceUee, surgeon’s • mate; | ™ent of Surgeon of Artülery and < 
William Grant, surgeon; Rod- ^nance- In 1785 he was appointea 

White, surgeon; Matthew burgeon of the Halifax Alms House
,a DOSitinn Oiikne_______ , ., _ ’Jones, wife and one childr surgeon; ®«Position subsequently held by his 

John Steele, lieutenant and surgeon; , eûD>* *Bs grandson and great grand- 
Patrick Hay, smrgeon; Augustus Cue- "BQn- He waa also a Justice of the 
sar Harbin, assistant surgeon; John ®ea*e i°r Halifax and Surgeon Gen- 

man and wife, surgeon- John Tn- **"«1 ^of the Militia. He died in Fntr
land in 1817. g"

______ • .,Afather famous practitioner of
cons mate; John Grant, surgeon’s ■ T'na‘T' '^arly time was Dr. John Halli- 
mate; Cochrane Dickson and wite, f Burton. Ufe was a native of Scotland 
surgeon; Jamea Handeeide, surgeon; 161111 8ut*eon of a British frigate !He 
Harry Fttt and two children; sur- marr4ed Mies Sussanah Brenton, of 
geon; Joshua Sacheverell, surgeonç Newport. Rhode Island, in 1767, *ind 
Archibald Campbell, snrgeon’e mate;1 > worked up a large and lucrative prec- 
David Ce.rnegie, surgeon. To this list tice 1” that town. Taking an active 
may be added—Tobert Throckmorton, Part on the British side when the war 

surgeon, pupil at St. George’s Hoe- , br*>ka out, he 4ras forced to leave 
Pital, anil one, Alexander Abererom- •;11,0111 Island and come 'to HaU- 
w®, ^who is described as an apothe- • ^aI in .1782. He soon became a leader 
car7'» mate. j in the profession here, and in 1787

Of couree, all these did not come to ? "became a member of His Majesty’s 
settle henpv but undoubtedly the ma- j Council. His death occurred in 1308. 
'jority did. Dr. Johnathan Prescott i Sir Brenton Halliburton, afterwards 
«ame with the New Englanders from £ Chiel Justice of Nova Scotia, waa hia 
Louisbwfc, a little later. In the very [ son.
year of the founding of the city, it » Dr. John Clark, a native of Inver- 

.said that nearly, one thousand per- j rose, also practiced here about the 
eons died of an epidemic, despite the ;same time. He was for many years 
P eaencr of eo many of the prof es- i Surgeon in the Navy Yard, from 

250 a Public Hospital was \ which he retired in 1809, dying a few 
erectedrad maintained hy toe Gov- (.yeare later.
^!ilDU.7'.f5’'?ral yTOr*’ bnt ™ at Dr. James Boggs, a native of Penn- 

?? almshouse. This eytronia, came to Halifax in 1787, 
building stood at the north aids ol «md was one of the garrison surgeons
îî?1”* P?* ï®,npiîd Ï7 ®°Ternment j imtll 1B.0. His death occurred in 
House. Dr. Rot<ert Grant, of toe j»Sl.

FIRST BAPTISTS
IN PROVINCES

Were Germans who came to 
Halifax and settled in 

Lunenburg.

The increase in church membership 
in the past 100 years.

(BY REV. E. M. SAUNDERS.)

The first Baptists known to be in 
the Maritime Provinces were Ger­
mans who came to Halifax about 1750 
and settled in Lunenburg County. 
The Rev. J. B. Moreau, a missionary 
of the Society For The Propagation 
Of The Gospel, in the report of his 
work in 1752, in Lunenburg, said he 
had under hi® care fifty-six families, 
composed of Lutherans, ^Calvinists, 
Presbyterians and Anabaptists. In 
the families of the Andres,, nc^w spel­
led Andrews, and the Hurleys, there 
is a tradition that their grandparents 

were Baptists before they left Hol­
land.

Sbübael Dimock and his son Dan­
iel, to escape persecution in the Col­
ony of Connecticut, came to Nova 
Scotia about 1759 and settled in 
Newport.

About 1760 a few Baptists came 
with the immigrants from the New 
England Colonies and settled on the 
lands in Kings and Hants Counties, 
which had been vacated by the expul­
sion of the Acadian French.

In 1763 a Baptist church was organ­
ized at Swansea in the Colony of 
Massachusetts, with the Rev. Nathan 
Mason as its pastor. It was formed 
for the purpose of emigrating to 
Nova Scotia. The church came to 
Sack ville, now New Brunswick. The 
names of the members were Benjamin 
Mason, Charles Seaman, Thomas 
Lewis, Gilbert Seaman and Oliver 
Mason, with their wives and a woman 

named Experience Baker. This church 
continued at SackvUle for about 
eight years, when the Revolution and 
other causes induced it to return to 
the United States.

The Rev. Ebeneezer Moulton came 
to Nova Scotia in 1761. Before 
leaving the Colonies he had been 
pastor of the Baptist church at 
Brimfield, Massachusetts. Mr. Moul­
ton took up 760 acres of land in Yar­
mouth County. He and two others 
were appointed by tne Government of

ly. He condemned the importance at­
tached to baptism in any form and 
advocated the principle that every­
one, by studying the Scriptures 
should decide this matter for him­
self. The result was a careful exam­
ination of the New Testament teach­
ing on this subject. Many, as a re­
sult, embraced Baptist views and 
were immersed as members of Con­
gregational churches. Finally the 
churches at Chester, Yarmouth, An­
napolis, Cornwallis and Waterbury be­

came Baptist cherches.
In 1778 a Baptist church was form­

ed at Wolf ville, composed of five per­
sons who had been baptized by the 
Rev. Ebeneezer BJoulton and some 
others baptized at the time. Henry 
Alline, although a Congregationalist, 
assisted in ordaining the Rev. Nich­
olas Pierson as pastor of the church. 
The Rev. John Wiswall, schoolmaster 
and clergyman of the Episcopal 
church in Cornwallis, said that Mr. 
Pierson was “an ignorant shoemak­
er.” This church at WolfviUe has 
continued until the present day, and 
is the oldest Baptist church in the 
Maritime Provinces.

John Burton came from England to 
Halifax in 1792. He went to the Uni­
ted States, embraced Baptist prin­
ciples, was ordained a Baptist min­
ister and came back to Halifax as a 
missionary. -He purchased land on 
Barrington Street, opposite A. W. 
Smith’s, and on it erected a church 
building and a dwelling house for 
himself. This was the first Baptist 
church in Halifax.

Of the pastoy and evangelists rais­
ed up by the labours of the Rev. 
Henry Alline, Joseph Dimock, Harris 
Harding, Edward Manning, James 
Manning, Daniel Dimock, Thomas 
Handley Chipman and Elijah Easta- 
brooks became Baptist ministers—in­
deed all of the Congregationalist 
ministers except one united with the 
Baptists. That one was the Rev. John

In 1842 the Baptists of the Mari­
time Provinces began missionary 
work in India. In 1873 the Baptists in 
Western Canada began their indepen­
dent work in India. They are now as­
sociated with the other Baptists in 
Canada. The missions are now car­
ried on by an expenditure of $45,000 
annually.

The Baptists of Ontario and Que­
bec began their educational, work at 
an early day. They now have a col- 
leg at Woodstock not granting de- 
gre is, Included in MacMaster Univer­
sité at Toronto, also Moulton Col­
lege in Toronto for young women. 
The Baptists further west have a col­
lege in Brandon, Man., also a college 
in Summerland, : Okanagan Valley, B. 
C._

in 1828 the Baptists of 'Nova Sco­
tia established an Academy at Wolf- 
ville, and in 1838 a College, and lat­
er a seminary for young ladies. At 
these institutions there is now an at-* 
ten-dance of about 600 young people, 
instructed by fifty teachers and pro­
fessors.

In 1794 in the United States, there 
was one Baptist church member to 94 
of the population; in 1812, one to 42 
of the population; in 1840 one to thir­
ty of the population; in 1880 one to 
25; in 1890 one to 21; in 1900 one to 
19; in 1905 one to 18; in 1908 one Bap­
tist to every seventeen of the popula­
tion. There are now forty-nine thous­
and, seven hundred and eighty church­
es, and 35,171 ordained ministers and 
about 6,000,000 members. At this 
date, according to the population by 
the census, there is one Baptist to ev­
ery eight the population. They 
own one-eighth of the college and un­
iversity property in the United 
States, have in their institutions 36,- 
58;> students,, which is one-fifth of the 
college students m the United States.

J.t this date the Baptists have on 
tn< west of the Atlantic Ocean, about 
37,100 ordained miniseers, 50,000 
churches, and 6,000,000 members. In 
Canada there are about 1,300 church- 

760 ordained ministers, and 130,- 
000 church members.

In Europe including Great Britain, 
they have 4,300 churches, 3,000 or­
dained ministers, 570,000 church mem­
bers. But since these statistics were 
compiled, it is estimated that the 
24,598 church members in Russia have 
increased to 100,000. In southern Rus­
sia and in the Balkan States, the 
Baptists, of late, have made great 
progress. A delegation from England 
and America went to Russia a few 
months ago, and succeeded in get­
ting permission from the Czar to 
found a Baptist College in St. Peters­
burg. The ground® for this purpose 
were purchased.

In Asia, the Baptists have 1,650 
churches, 922 ordained ministers, .-and 
163,000 church members. In Africa 
they have 101 churches, 93 ordained 
ministers and 15,800 church members.
In Australasia 320 churches, 298 or­
dained ministers and 27,000 church 
members.

In the 17th. century the Baptists 
stood alone in America for religious 
freedom and the separation of Church 
and State. Now these principles gen­
erally prevail all over the continent 
and very generally over the world. 
“Soul-liberty” in the defence of whicli 

Roger Williams suffered banishment 
from Massachusetts to a home in the 
wilderness among the Indians, and 
Obediah Holmes took a whipping or­
dered by law In Boston, since these

ST. PAUL'S CHURCH.

Payzant of Liverpool, who, while re­
maining a Congregationalist, always 
m!a^ntadned very friendly relations 
with the Baptists.

The Congregationalist churches held 
associations in 1798 and 1799. But in 
1800 when their Association met at 
Lower Granville, it was found to be 
substantially a Baptist Association, 
and the name was accordingly chang­
ed, and It became a Baptist Associ­
ation. The delegates from Annapolis 
were the Rev. T. H. Chipman, Timo­
thy Rice and Abner Hall; from Dig- 
by, Rev. Enoch Towner; second church 

Annapolis, Rev. James Manning; 
Horton, Rev. Theodore S. Harding; 
Newport, Rev. George Dimock; Sack- 
ville, N. B., Kev. Joseph Crandall; 
Yarmouth, Rev. Harris Harding; 
Cornwallis, Rev. Edward Manning; 
Chester^ Rev. Joseph Dimock.

In 1810 xj;here were in the Maritime 
Provinces ten ministers and nine hun­
dred and twéhty-four members in the 
Baptist churches. In 1911 there were 
sixty-four thousand members. The 
census returns of 1901 gave 170,184 
Baptists in the Maritime Provinces, 
301,072 Roman Catholics, 176,493 
Presbyterians, 106,865 Methodists and 
113,810 Episcopalians.

events, has prevailed over mediaeval 
superstition and persecution, and is 
now marching strong and assured to 
final and universal victory.

J

J. C. O’MULLH, LL.B„
Barrister, Solicitor, Notary, 

Commissioner, &c.,

71 HOLLIS STREET,
HALIFAX, N. S

J. Johnstone Hunt, K. C.,
BARRISTER, &C.

Bank of Commerce Chamber»
COR- GRANVILLE » OEOROE STS.

THE FIRST CHURCH OF ENG­
LAND IN THE DOMINION.

{*3T See Page 12.)
The following additional facts about 

St. Paul’s Church will be of interest : . 
Royal Foundation, 1749.
Royal Founder : King George the 

Second.
The First Church of England in the 

Dominion of Canada.
The Oldest Protestant Church in the 

Dominion of Canada.
First Church of England Service 

J une 21st, 1749.
Church opened for Divine Service 

2nd September, 1750.
St. Paul’s Parish Constituted, 1758. 
St. Paul’s Sunday School founded 

1783.
BISHOPS

1816-1824
1825-1850

1851-1887 

- 1888-1904

OF THE DIOCESE OF NOVA 
SCOTIA.

The Right Reverends :
1. Charles Inglis, D.D., - 1787-1816
2. Robert Stanser, LL.B ,

D.D. (Died 1829) -
3. John Inglis, D.D., - -
4. Hibbert Binney, M.A.,

D.D.,- - - - -
5. Frederick Courtney,

S.T.D., D.D., -
"6. Clarendon Lamb Wor­

rell, D.D., IXC.L., - 1904- 
rectors OF ST. PAUX’S CHURCH. 

Rev. Wm. Tutty, B.A., First
Missionary, ----- 1749-1752 

Rev. John Bz-eynton, D.D.,
First Rector, - - - - 1753-1791 

Rev. Robert Stanser, D.D.,
Second Rector, - - 1791-1816 

(Second Bishop of Nova Scotia). 
Rev. John Inglis, D.D., Third

Rector, -........................... 1816-1824
(Third Bishop of Nova Scotia).

Ven. Robert Willis, D.D.,
Fourth Rector, - - - 1824-1865 

Rev. G. W. Hill, M. A.,
D.C.L., Fifth Rector, - 1865-1885 

Rev. Chas. Hole, D. D.,
L.L.D., Sixth Rector, - 1886-1889 

Rev. Dyson Hague, M. A.,
Seventh Rector, - - - 1890-1897 

Ven. W. J. Armitage M.A.,
Ph. D., Eighth Rector, - 1897-

FOOT OF GEORGE STREET 
In early days, showing the first steamboat of Dartmouth Ferry.

TO AN OLD FRIEND.
Old friend ! though many a year hath flown, 
And we have somewhat wiser grown.

Since you and I first met—
The love that in our bosoms grew 
When life was rosy, fresh and new,

Is blooming brightly yet.
Time brings a philosophic mind/
Time takes more than he leaves behind— 

Time is the thief of joys ;
Time turns one’s golden locks to gray.
Time draws a bill which all must pay—

Time makes old men of boys.
Time with his scythe and hour-glass, stands 
To reap the harvest of our lands—

To shorten prosperous days ;
Tinie cats the keenest steel to rust.
Time crumbles monuments to dust—

Time robs us of our praise.
Much fault is found with Father Time,
In books and speeches, prose and rhyme,

But we will not upbraid ;
For he has left our hearts as young 
As when in youth we laughed and sung 

In sunlight and in shade.
Who says that age makes friendship cold?
A true affection ne'er grows old,

But lasts like mountain pines.
Whose heads unfading verdure crowns. 
Though Winter darkens them with frowns. 
Or Summer smiles and shines.
I wish that, round our mutual souls,
While earth upon its axis rolls,

The vines of love that run 
Might spread their tendrils and embrace 
The cherished dear ones of our race.

So that from sire to son.
Our large affection might survive.
And be as brightly kept alive,

When we exist no more,
By those we léave to guard our fames,
And keep unstained our honest names,

As in the days of yore.
Old friend, 'tis something in these hours 
Of work and hurry, when the flowers 

Of feeling scarcely bloom, *
To feel that in our hearts there grows 
A plant, amid life’s sands and snows.

That may adorn our tomb I

One hundred years in one family.
The Recorder has been read by the 

Johnson family at Bear Cove since its 
establishment in 1813. The great-great 
grandfather of Bernard Johnson, the 
present subscriber, was the first one of 
the ancestors to subscribe, and he has 
been followed by his son, Lawrence 
Johnson, whose son John was the next 
to follow on with the subscription. 
Bernard Johnson, son of John Johnson, 
is the present subscriber. He has 
read the Recorder since he has been 
able to read and remembers his father 
telling of his great-great grandfather 
subscribing for the paper in 1813.

Can any newspaper or family on this 
side of the Atlantic beat the aboVe 
record ?

MEDICINE A
CENTURY AGO.

First native bom Nova Scotians 
to practice was in 1800.

First Vaccination for smallpox in 1802.
(

(BY DR. E. BLACKADDER.)

It was not until we reach the year 
1800 that we begin to find native- 
born Nova Scotians in the medical 
profession, Old Countrymen and Loy­
alists occupying the field up to ihat 
time. The first natives to take up the 
Healing Art were Dr. Samuel Head, 
of Halifax, Dr. D. B. Lynd of Truro, 
graduate of the University of Penn­
sylvania, Dr. Robert Bayard, of 
Cornwallis, graduate of Edinburgh, 
and Dr. W. B. Almon, of Halifax, 
graduate of Edinburgh, also.

In 1802, the first vaccination for 
smallpox was made in Nova Scotia, 
Dr. Norman Bond of Yarmouth, be­
ing the pioneer. An infant was vac­
cinated, grew to manhood and reach­
ed old age and -never contracted the 
disease though often exposed .to in­
fection.

In the year 1828, the Province had 
a population of about 144,000, and 
the number of registered practition­
er# was sixty-five. By the year 1854, 
our population had about doubled 
and the number çf medical men had 
increased to 120, more than one-half 
of whom were native born. Of those 
in •practice, 50 per cent, had beep ed­
ucated in the United States, 35 per 
cent, in Britain, and 17 per cent, 
were Provincial licentiates. The pro­
portion of medical men to population 
was low and quackery flourished ex­
ceedingly, and a Provincial Medical 
Society was organized by the physic­
ians in self-defence. Various Medi­
cal Acts have been passed by the 
Legislature since that time, which 
have been more or less effective in 
controlling quackery. In 1867 a Cana­
dian Medical Association was organ­
ized with Sir Charles, then Dr. Tup- 
per. as the first presiding officer. The 
second President was Hon. Dr. Par­
ker. In the same year a Medical 
School providing a preparatory 
course was founded, and three years 
later it took up the work of a full 
graduate course. The development of 
this and other Canadian Medical Col­
leges has brought about a remarkable 
change in the situation. Between 1895 
ana 1904, the additions to the Medical 
Register of the Province showed that 
85.5 per cent, were graduates of Can­
adian colleges, 14.2 per cent, of Am­
erican colleges, while only 0.3 per 
cent, were ol British colleges, and the 
Canadian graduates do not suffer by 
comparison. At the present time the 
graduates of Canadian colleges form 
almost the entire body of those an­
nually registered.

In 1836 Dr. W. B. Webster of K^ent- 
ville, performed the first succeakflil 
operation for cataract. In 1845, Dr. 
D. McNeill Parker heard of the dis­
covery of ether in Boston. Lawrence 
VanBuekirk, a dentist of this city, 
went to Boston and familiarized him­
self with ita use. Shortly after the 
dentist’s return Dr. Parker was cal­
led upon to perform an amputation, 
and he agked VanBuekirk to etherize 
him that he might test the new dis­
covery for himself. This was partly 
done when the dentist got nervous 
and desisted. Next day the patient 
was fully anaesthetized and the am­
putation performed successfully. 
Dr. Parker* was thus the first to op­
erate under an anaesthetic in this 
Province, and Lawrence VanBuekirk 
was the first to administer the leth- 
ean vapour.

We are favored by that indefatiga­
ble worker aqd enthusiast in all 
things connected with medicina and 
medical education, Dr. A. tff. H. 
Lindsay, with the opportunity oi' per­
using the minutes of the “Clinical 

f^ociety of Halifax,” an organtâation 
eckpi^g into existence in 1869. The 
first meeting waa held in Dr. Farrell’s 
office, those present being Dr. tilay- 
ter. Dr. A. p. Reid, Dr. Somers, Dr. 
Trenaman and Dr. Farrell. Dr. Reid 
was first chairman and Dr. Farrell 
first secretary. A somewhat elaborate 
system of bye-laws was adopted, and 
the mutual exchange of opinions and 
experience which followed during the 
succeeding months was of great im­
portance in the history of civic med­
icine.

At the meeting held on October 
27th, 1869, there was a full discussion 
of Dr. Lister’s then recent experi­
ments and discoveries in the use of 
antiseptics in surgery. There was 
much misunderstanding and not a 
littla* misrepresentation of Lister’s 
work both in this country and in 
Britain. Lister’s method was not to 
treat the wound with carbolic acid 
directly, but to keep the surrounding 

germ-free by means of a carbolic 
acid spray while the operation was 
proceeding ïn the discussion referred 
to, it is interesting to read the opin-
ft°th? lead-fS Halifax physicians 
at the time. Dr. Somers cited re­
ports from medical journals for and 
against Listerism, and stated that 
he himself -believed lt to be a good 
disinfectant and little more.”
with 881,1 he had nsed it
with excellent results and liked it as
ra.‘«S bUt did not see that there 
was anything extraordinary in its ac-

Dr- tPalsh had found carbolic
Dr4 WnortCnal “ many ,ormB of ulcers, 
lent ! T- regarded 11 as an excel­
lent deodorizing agent, good to pre- 
vent sloughing in malignant disease,
n?^>n e£n “ ca8es of Mzema and 
,°Z°ena' Dr- Farrell thought it excel- 
hÜL . antiseptic, but did not

U, po88ibl« to produce all the - 
results clmmed for it by Lister and
nlfr«H8C1PleS' The Proc<®ses Of sup- 
P“, depended upon something M 

“ .î.he sore’ upon vital changes 
. trough the vessels and nerves 
L . Part" Garbolic acid might 

act favorably on the local circum­
stances, and therefore Dr. Lister de­
served great credit. Dr. A. P. Reid 
warmly supported many of Lister’s 
contentions regarding the use of car­
bolic acid and the results obtained, 
especially in regard to compound 
fractures. Dr. Somers said he prefer- 
red to use potassium permanganate 
instead. He objected to the germ the­
ory of Pasteur.

All this is very interesting in the 
light of later developments of the 
germ theory and of the value of an-

emn&mm.

PLEASANT STREET, *
From Bishop to Morris Street in the early days.

tiseptics.
a meeting held on March 30th, 

1870, there was an interesting dis­
cussion over Professor Tyndall’s es­
say on the connection of organic dust 
in the atmosphere with disease. Dr. 
Somers expressed himself as skeptical 
regarding the germ theory of disease, 
|mile Dr. Gordon vigorously defended

The "Clinical Society” died in 
1870, but was revived in 1880, the 
new charter members being Dr. Law- 
son, Dr. Sinclair, Dr. Black, Dr. D. 
A. Campbell, Dr. Parker, Dr. R. 8. 
Black, Dr. Lindsay, Dr. Farrell, Dr. 
Slayter and Dr. A. P. Reid. At the 
first meeting, Dr. Lindsay, fresh from 
his college course in the Old Coun­
try, read an able paper on antiseptic 
surgery. He dealt with the discovery 
of the “germ theory” and described 
in detail the ideas and methods of 
Dr. Lister. The various antiseptics 
used by him were discussed, and also 
the methods of antiseptic surgical 
dressing. The paper left little room 
for variation of opinion, all present 
more or less agreeing with the con­
tentions advanced and deductions 
drawn. Dr. Lindsay’s paper marked 
an era in antiseptics in this Province. 
Three years later the question was 
again discussed- by the society. In 
1884 the Society ceased to exist and 
has been succeeded since that time 
by several other organizations of 
a similar nature.

We see from the beginning that 
Halifax in regard to the skill of its ^ 
physicians and surgeons has stood 
and still stands as highly favored as 
any city on the continent.

!
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